
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
Acrobat 9 or Adobe Reader 9, or later.

Get Adobe Reader Now!

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




From: Scearce, Lynn
To: gary.frost@gapac.com
Cc: ron.reynolds@gapac.com; ceron.heather@epa.gov; forney.kathleen@epa.gov; AlNahdy, Khalid; Read, David;


Arif, Syed; Friday, Barbara; Scearce, Lynn
Subject: 1070005-078-AC, Georgia Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC, Palatka Mill, Draft Permit
Date: Thursday, January 03, 2013 8:58:24 AM
Attachments: Draft 1070005-078-AC - Written Notice Signed.pdf


Dear Mr. Frost: 


Attached is the official Notice of Draft Permit for the project referenced below. Click on
the link displayed below to access the permit project documents and reply back
verifying receipt of the document(s) provided in the link.


Note:  We must receive verification that you are able to access the documents. Your immediate reply will preclude
subsequent e-mail transmissions to verify accessibility of the document(s).


Owner/Company Name: GEORGIA-PACIFIC CONSUMER OPERATIONS LLC 
Facility Name: PALATKA PULP and PAPER MILL 
Project Number: 1070005-078-AC 
Permit Status: DRAFT 
Permit Activity: CONSTRUCTION 
Facility County: PUTNAM


Click on the following link to access the permit project documents: 
http://ARM-
PERMIT2K.dep.state.fl.us/adh/prod/pdf_permit_zip_files/1070005.078.AC.D_pdf.zip


If you have any problems opening the documents or would like further information, please
contact the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Office of Permitting and
Compliance.


Lynn Scearce
Office of Permitting and Compliance (OPC)
Division of Air Resource Management – DEP
2600 Blair Stone Road, Mail Stop 5505
Phone:  850-717-9025


Did you know that the Department may not require you to submit a Title V fee for the 2012 calendar year?  To learn more,
please visit us online at the following web address:  www.title5feeholiday.com


 


 


Please take a few minutes to share your comments on the service you received from the department
by clicking on this link. DEP Customer Survey.
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FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 



BOB MARTINEZ CENTER 
2600 BLAIR STONE ROAD 



TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32399-2400 



RICK SCOTT 
GOVERNOR 



 
JENNIFER CARROLL



LT. GOVERNOR 
 



HERSCHEL T. VINYARD JR. 
SECRETARY



Sent by Electronic Mail – Received Receipt Requested 



Gary L. Frost, Vice President Operations 
Georgia Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC 
Post Office Box 919 
Palatka, Florida 32178-0919 



Re: Project No. 1070005-078-AC 
Georgia Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC, Palatka Mill 
No. 4 Combination Boiler, Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP) Replacement 



Dear Mr. Frost: 



On December 19, 2012, you submitted a complete application requesting a permit revision to allow the 
replacement of the No. 4 combination boiler ESP with the ESP previously used for the No. 5 power boiler at the 
Palatka Mill.  The Palatka Mill is an existing facility located in Putnam County at 215 County Road 216 in 
Palatka, Florida.  Enclosed are the following documents:  the Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit; the 
Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit; the Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination; and the 
Draft Permit.  The Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit is the actual notice that you must have published in 
the legal advertisement section of a newspaper of general circulation in the area affected by this project.  If you 
have any questions, please contact the project engineer, David Read at 850/717-9075. 



Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 



for Jeffery F. Koerner, Program Administrator 
Office of Permitting and Compliance 
Division of Air Resource Management 
 
 



Enclosures 



JFK/ sa/dlr
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In the Matter of an 
Application for Air Permit by: 



Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC 
Post Office Box 919 
Palatka, FL 32178-0919 
 
Authorized Representative: 



Gary L. Frost, Vice President Operations 



Project No. 1070005-078-AC
Minor Air Construction Permit Revision



Palatka Mill
No. 4 Combination Boiler 



ESP Replacement 
Putnam County, Florida



Facility Location:  Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC operates the existing Palatka Mill, which 
is located in Putnam County at 215 County Road 216 in Palatka, Florida. 



Project:  This project (Permit No. 1070005-078-AC) involves replacing the existing ESP used to control 
particulate matter (PM) emissions from the No. 4 combination boiler with an ESP previously used to 
control PM emission from the No. 5 power boiler.  Details of the project are provided in the application 
and the enclosed Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination.   



Permitting Authority:  Applications for air construction permits are subject to review in accordance with 
the provisions of Chapter 403, Florida Statutes (F.S.) and Chapters 62-4, 62-210 and 62-212 of the 
Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.).  The proposed project is not exempt from air permitting 
requirements and is a revision of the previously issued permit No. 1070005-066-AC required to perform 
the proposed work.  The Office of Permitting and Compliance is the Permitting Authority responsible for 
making a permit determination for this project.  The Permitting Authority’s mailing address is:  2600 
Blair Stone Road, MS #5505, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400.  The Permitting Authority’s telephone 
number is 850/717-9000. 



Project File:  A complete project file is available for public inspection during the normal business hours 
of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday (except legal holidays), at address indicated above for 
the Permitting Authority.  The complete project file includes the Draft Permit, the Technical Evaluation 
and Preliminary Determination, the application, and the information submitted by the applicant, exclusive 
of confidential records under Section 403.111, F.S.  Interested persons may contact the Permitting 
Authority’s project review engineer for additional information at the address or phone number listed 
above. 



Notice of Intent to Issue Permit:  The Permitting Authority gives notice of its intent to issue an air 
permit to the applicant for the project described above.  The applicant has provided reasonable assurance 
that operation of the proposed equipment will not adversely impact air quality and that the project will 
comply with all appropriate provisions of Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-296 and 62-297, 
F.A.C.  The Permitting Authority will issue a Final Permit in accordance with the conditions of the 
proposed Draft Permit unless a timely petition for an administrative hearing is filed under Sections 
120.569 and 120.57, F.S. or unless public comment received in accordance with this notice results in a 
different decision or a significant change of terms or conditions. 



Public Notice:  Pursuant to Section 403.815, F.S. and Rules 62-110.106 and 62-210.350, F.A.C., you (the 
applicant) are required to publish at your own expense the enclosed Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air 
Permit (Public Notice).  The Public Notice shall be published one time only as soon as possible in the 
legal advertisement section of a newspaper of general circulation in the area affected by this project.  The 
newspaper used must meet the requirements of Sections 50.011 and 50.031, F.S. in the county where the 
activity is to take place.  If you are uncertain that a newspaper meets these requirements, please contact 
the Permitting Authority at above address or phone number.  Pursuant to Rule 62-110.106(5) and (9), 
F.A.C., the applicant shall provide proof of publication to the Permitting Authority at the above address 
within 7 days of publication.  Failure to publish the notice and provide proof of publication may result in 
the denial of the permit pursuant to Rule 62-110.106(11), F.A.C. 



Comments:  The Permitting Authority will accept written comments concerning the proposed Draft 
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Permit for a period of 14 days from the date of publication of the Public Notice.  Written comments must 
be received by the Permitting Authority by close of business (5:00 p.m.) on or before the end of the 14-
day period.  If written comments received result in a significant change to the Draft Permit, the Permitting 
Authority shall revise the Draft Permit and require, if applicable, another Public Notice.  All comments 
filed will be made available for public inspection. 



Petitions:  A person whose substantial interests are affected by the proposed permitting decision may 
petition for an administrative hearing in accordance with Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S.  The petition 
must contain the information set forth below and must be filed with (received by) the Department’s 
Agency Clerk in the Office of General Counsel of the Department of Environmental Protection, 3900 
Commonwealth Boulevard, Mail Station #35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000.  Petitions filed by the 
applicant or any of the parties listed below must be filed within 14 days of receipt of this Written Notice 
of Intent to Issue Air Permit.  Petitions filed by any persons other than those entitled to written notice 
under Section 120.60(3), F.S., must be filed within 14 days of publication of the attached Public Notice or 
within 14 days of receipt of this Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit, whichever occurs first.  
Under Section 120.60(3), F.S., however, any person who asked the Permitting Authority for notice of 
agency action may file a petition within 14 days of receipt of that notice, regardless of the date of 
publication.  A petitioner shall mail a copy of the petition to the applicant at the address indicated above, 
at the time of filing.  The failure of any person to file a petition within the appropriate time period shall 
constitute a waiver of that person’s right to request an administrative determination (hearing) under 
Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S., or to intervene in this proceeding and participate as a party to it.  Any 
subsequent intervention (in a proceeding initiated by another party) will be only at the approval of the 
presiding officer upon the filing of a motion in compliance with Rule 28-106.205, F.A.C. 



A petition that disputes the material facts on which the Permitting Authority’s action is based must 
contain the following information: (a) The name and address of each agency affected and each agency’s 
file or identification number, if known; (b) The name, address, and telephone number of the petitioner; 
the name, address and telephone number of the petitioner’s representative, if any, which shall be the 
address for service purposes during the course of the proceeding; and an explanation of how the 
petitioner’s substantial interests will be affected by the agency determination; (c) A statement of when 
and how each petitioner received notice of the agency action or proposed decision; (d) A statement of all 
disputed issues of material fact.  If there are none, the petition must so state; (e) A concise statement of 
the ultimate facts alleged, including the specific facts the petitioner contends warrant reversal or 
modification of the agency’s proposed action; (f) A statement of the specific rules or statutes the 
petitioner contends require reversal or modification of the agency’s proposed action including an 
explanation of how the alleged facts relate to the specific rules or statutes; and, (g) A statement of the 
relief sought by the petitioner, stating precisely the action the petitioner wishes the agency to take with 
respect to the agency’s proposed action.  A petition that does not dispute the material facts upon which 
the Permitting Authority’s action is based shall state that no such facts are in dispute and otherwise shall 
contain the same information as set forth above, as required by Rule 28-106.301, F.A.C. 



Because the administrative hearing process is designed to formulate final agency action, the filing of a 
petition means that the Permitting Authority’s final action may be different from the position taken by it 
in this Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit.  Persons whose substantial interests will be affected 
by any such final decision of the Permitting Authority on the application have the right to petition to 
become a party to the proceeding, in accordance with the requirements set forth above. 



Mediation:  Mediation is not available in this proceeding. 
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Executed in Tallahassee, Florida 
 
 
 
 



 
for Jeffery F. Koerner, Program Administrator 



Office of Permitting and Compliance 
Division of Air Resource Management 
 
 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 



The undersigned duly designated deputy agency clerk hereby certifies that this Final Air Permit package 
(including the Final Determination and Final Permit) was sent by electronic mail, or a link to these 
documents made available electronically on a publicly accessible server, with received receipt requested 
before the close of business on the date indicated below to the following persons. 



Mr. Gary Frost, Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations LLC (gary.frost@gapac.com) 
Mr. Ron Reynolds, Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations LLC (ron.reynolds@gapac.com) 
Ms. Heather Ceron, US EPA Region 4 (ceron.heather@epa.gov) 
Ms. Katy Forney, US EPA Region 4 (forney.kathleen@epamail.epa.gov) 
Mr. Khalid AlNahdy, DEP Northeast District Office (khalid.alnahdy@dep.state.fl.us) 
Ms. Barbara Friday, DEP OPC (barbara.friday@dep.state.fl.us)  
Ms. Lynn Scearce, DEP OPC Reading File (lynn.scearce@dep.state.fl.us) 
 



Clerk Stamp 
FILING AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT FILED, on 
this date, pursuant to Section 120.52(7), Florida Statutes, 
with the designated agency clerk, receipt of which is 
hereby acknowledged. 
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			Lynn Scearce



















From: Linero, Alvaro
To: Read, David
Subject: FW: Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations LLC, Palatka Mill, Facility ID 1070005
Date: Monday, December 10, 2012 10:28:17 AM
Attachments: Research-Cottrell Manual sec I.pdf


036-AC No. 5 PB ESP Addition of 3rd Field Final.pdf


David:
 
These details relate to the second piece of the G-P project.
 
I.e. they blank off some cyclones and also route exhaust to a different ESP.
 
A. A. Linero, P.E.
Florida Department of Environmental Protection
Office of Permitting and Compliance
850-717-9076
 
Did you know that the Department may not require you to submit a Title V fee for the 2012 calendar year?  To learn more, please visit us
online at the following web address:  www.title5feeholiday.com


 


From: Reynolds, Ron E. [mailto:Ron.Reynolds@GAPAC.com] 
Sent: Friday, December 07, 2012 12:40 PM
To: Linero, Alvaro; Arif, Syed; Pell, Leigh
Cc: Tingle, Scott D.; Ruppel, Mark S.; Eckenrode, Jim P.; Antoine, Melissa K.; Morris, Daniel L.; Francis, Keith T.
(PAL)
Subject: RE: Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations LLC, Palatka Mill, Facility ID 1070005
 
 
Below is information comparing the design of the #4 Combination Boiler precipitator and the #5 Power Boiler
precipitator (currently unused) that we are proposing to utilize for the #4 CB:


 
1)       The two precipitator chambers are identical (size, structure, etc.)
2)       The main difference between the two precipitators originally was that the Power Boiler inlet field


was empty; an inlet field was added to the PB unit in 2007 under permit 1070005-036-AC issued
October 11, 2006 (copy attached) .


3)       Both Precipitators have (3) Fields, all of them have (21) collecting plates, (20) gas passages with
12” spacing


a.       The collecting plates are 41’ high and 11’2” wide.
4)       Each field has (120) electrodes, (6) in each gas passage.
5)       Each Precipitator has (49) Rappers


a.       (12) collecting plate rappers per field
b.      (3) discharge electrode rappers per field
c.        (2) inlet and (2) outlet distribution plate rappers


6)       The fields are individually energized by five (6) transformer/rectifier (T/R) sets (three per
Precipitator).  Each T/R is connected full wave through a single output bushing. The
power supply is 480 volts, 60 Hz, 3 Phase.


a.       T/R Set Ratings
Primary


Volts
AC


Primary
Amps


AC


Secondary
Volts DC


Secondary
Amps DC


KVA
 


480 V 84 55 kV 500 mA 38.6
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7)       Both utilize BHA SQ300 Controls for the Rappers and T/R Sets.
8)       There are a few subtle differences that overall should not impact dust removal performance.  These


differences are in the style of electrodes and plates in various fields.  I can get more details on this
if needed.


 
Also attached is a section of the original Research Cottrell manual with details about both precipitator units. 
 
This is not intended to represent the application; just preliminary information as requested.  Additional
information will be forwarded as available. 
 
Best regards,
 
 
Ron Reynolds
Office 386-329-0967
Cell 386-916-3133
 


From: Linero, Alvaro [mailto:Alvaro.Linero@dep.state.fl.us] 
Sent: Wednesday, December 05, 2012 5:59 PM
To: Reynolds, Ron E.
Cc: Pell, Leigh; Arif, Syed
Subject: RE: Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations LLC, Palatka Mill, Facility ID 1070005
 
Ron:
 
I think 14 days is sufficient, but 30-day is best because the project we are changing was a PSD
project.
 
If you find yourself in a squeeze, we can do the 14 days.  Maybe your corporate people will
have an opinion.
 
In either case, a good summary will allow us to act promptly and make your February outage
target.
 
Start sending us a few pictures (of damaged and mothballed ESP's) and we can start write-up.
 
Al Linero.
 
A.A. Linero, P.E.
Florida Department of Environmental Protection
Division of Air Resource Management
Office of Permitting and Compliance
1-850-717-9076
 
 


Please take a few minutes to share your comments on the service you received from the department by clicking on
this link DEP Customer Survey.
From: Reynolds, Ron E. [Ron.Reynolds@GAPAC.com]
Sent: Wednesday, December 05, 2012 5:29 PM
To: Linero, Alvaro; Arif, Syed
Cc: Ruppel, Mark S.; Eckenrode, Jim P.; Pell, Leigh; Tingle, Scott D.; McQuaig, Mary M.



mailto:Alvaro.Linero@dep.state.fl.us
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Subject: Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations LLC, Palatka Mill, Facility ID 1070005


Al and Syed,
 
Thank you for discussing with me today our plans regarding the No. 4 Combination Boiler (EU 016)
precipitator.  As we discussed, the precipitator was damaged in a fire in early November, and bark burning is
currently curtailed.   I had previously discussed this with Al and Leigh when we were considering rebuild of the
No. 4 CB precipitator in the first quarter.  Now, we are considering instead the possibility of utilizing the former
No. 5 Power Boiler (EU 015) electrostatic precipitator which was taken out of service in 2008 when the No. 5
PB was converted to gas.  This unit is similar in size and design to the No. 4 CB unit and is located right next to
the CB unit.  We propose to make the necessary modifications to tie-in the No. 5 PB precipitator at the exit of
the he CB dust collector.  Of course, the precipitator will be fully inspected and prepped for duty.  The current
thinking is that this work would be completed in February, if the necessary approvals can be obtained.
 
Our permitting strategy will be to request a modification of the construction permit 066-AC/070-AC, which is
the permit for the No. 4 CB authorizing replacement of oil with natural gas auxiliary fuel, electric ID fan, dust
collector modification, and replacement of tubes in the air preheater.   The latter was approved in 070-AC
which extended the expiration date to 1/1/2014.  You suggested a shortened application form (the first four
pages) with sufficient details regarding the No. 5 precipitator to demonstrate that it is similar in design and
efficiency to the No. 4 CB unit, before it was damaged. 
 
We will get the application package in your hands as soon as practicable, understanding that you will require
time to review and issue the draft permit.  Will this require the 14-day public notice?
 
Best regards,
 
Ron
 
 
Ron Reynolds
Senior Environmental Engineer – Air
GP, Palatka Operations
Palatka, FL 32178-0919
Office 386-329-0967
Cell 386-916-3133
 








From: Arif, Syed
To: Scearce, Lynn
Cc: Read, David; Linero, Alvaro
Subject: FW: Georgia-Pacific, ID 1070005, No. 4 Combination Boiler Precipitator Project, PE certification
Date: Tuesday, December 18, 2012 2:03:39 PM
Attachments: 20121218130655741.pdf


Lynn,


The signed PE page has been submitted.  The application came in on Friday.


Syed


-----Original Message-----
From: Reynolds, Ron E. [mailto:Ron.Reynolds@GAPAC.com]
Sent: Tuesday, December 18, 2012 1:43 PM
To: Arif, Syed
Cc: Linero, Alvaro; McQuaig, Mary M.
Subject: FW: Georgia-Pacific, ID 1070005, No. 4 Combination Boiler Precipitator Project, PE certification


Attached is the signed PE certification page.  One original and three copies of the full application with PE
certification pages will be forwarded by overnight mail.


Contact me if you have any questions.


Ron Reynolds
Senior Environmental Engineer - Air
GP, Palatka Operations
Palatka, FL 32178-0919
Office 386-329-0967
Cell 386-916-3133
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From: Arif, Syed
To: Scearce, Lynn
Cc: Koerner, Jeff; Linero, Alvaro; Read, David
Subject: Georgia Pacific - Palatka ESP Replacement
Date: Thursday, January 03, 2013 8:28:55 AM
Attachments: Draft 1070005-078-AC - Written Notice Signed.pdf


Draft 1070005-078-AC - Written Notice.docx
Draft 1070005-078-AC - Public Notice.doc
Draft 1070005-078-AC - TEPD.docx
Draft 1070005-078-AC- Permit.docx


Lynn – Attached are documents for a minor AC modification at the above referenced facility. 
Please clerk and issue the project.
 
Jeff - This minor air construction permit revision will allow the replacement of the existing
damaged ESP for the No. 4 combination boiler with the ESP previously used for the No. 5 power
boiler at the Palatka Mill.  The replacement is necessary because the original ESP was damaged by
fire in November 2012.   The power boiler ESP is nearly identical in size, design and configuration to
the combination boiler ESP and should provide equivalent PM control efficiency.  A 14-day
comment period on the public notice is required for this project.
 
Thanks,
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
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WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT REVISION


Sent by Electronic Mail – Received Receipt Requested


Gary L. Frost, Vice President Operations


Georgia Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC


Post Office Box 919


Palatka, Florida 32178-0919


Re:	Project No. 1070005-078-AC


Georgia Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC, Palatka Mill


No. 4 Combination Boiler, Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP) Replacement


Dear Mr. Frost:


On December 19, 2012, you submitted a complete application requesting a permit revision to allow the replacement of the No. 4 combination boiler ESP with the ESP previously used for the No. 5 power boiler at the Palatka Mill.  The Palatka Mill is an existing facility located in Putnam County at 215 County Road 216 in Palatka, Florida.  Enclosed are the following documents:  the Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit; the Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit; the Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination; and the Draft Permit.  The Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit is the actual notice that you must have published in the legal advertisement section of a newspaper of general circulation in the area affected by this project.  If you have any questions, please contact the project engineer, David Read at 850/717-9075.


Sincerely,

















for	Jeffery F. Koerner, Program Administrator


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








Facility Location:  Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC operates the existing Palatka Mill, which is located in Putnam County at 215 County Road 216 in Palatka, Florida.


Project:  This project (Permit No. 1070005-078-AC) involves replacing the existing ESP used to control particulate matter (PM) emissions from the No. 4 combination boiler with an ESP previously used to control PM emission from the No. 5 power boiler.  Details of the project are provided in the application and the enclosed Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination.  


Permitting Authority:  Applications for air construction permits are subject to review in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 403, Florida Statutes (F.S.) and Chapters 62-4, 62-210 and 62-212 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.).  The proposed project is not exempt from air permitting requirements and is a revision of the previously issued permit No. 1070005-066-AC required to perform the proposed work.  The Office of Permitting and Compliance is the Permitting Authority responsible for making a permit determination for this project.  The Permitting Authority’s mailing address is:  2600 Blair Stone Road, MS #5505, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400.  The Permitting Authority’s telephone number is 850/717-9000.


Project File:  A complete project file is available for public inspection during the normal business hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday (except legal holidays), at address indicated above for the Permitting Authority.  The complete project file includes the Draft Permit, the Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination, the application, and the information submitted by the applicant, exclusive of confidential records under Section 403.111, F.S.  Interested persons may contact the Permitting Authority’s project review engineer for additional information at the address or phone number listed above.


Notice of Intent to Issue Permit:  The Permitting Authority gives notice of its intent to issue an air permit to the applicant for the project described above.  The applicant has provided reasonable assurance that operation of the proposed equipment will not adversely impact air quality and that the project will comply with all appropriate provisions of Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-296 and 62-297, F.A.C.  The Permitting Authority will issue a Final Permit in accordance with the conditions of the proposed Draft Permit unless a timely petition for an administrative hearing is filed under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. or unless public comment received in accordance with this notice results in a different decision or a significant change of terms or conditions.


Public Notice:  Pursuant to Section 403.815, F.S. and Rules 62-110.106 and 62-210.350, F.A.C., you (the applicant) are required to publish at your own expense the enclosed Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit (Public Notice).  The Public Notice shall be published one time only as soon as possible in the legal advertisement section of a newspaper of general circulation in the area affected by this project.  The newspaper used must meet the requirements of Sections 50.011 and 50.031, F.S. in the county where the activity is to take place.  If you are uncertain that a newspaper meets these requirements, please contact the Permitting Authority at above address or phone number.  Pursuant to Rule 62-110.106(5) and (9), F.A.C., the applicant shall provide proof of publication to the Permitting Authority at the above address within 7 days of publication.  Failure to publish the notice and provide proof of publication may result in the denial of the permit pursuant to Rule 62-110.106(11), F.A.C.


Comments:  The Permitting Authority will accept written comments concerning the proposed Draft Permit for a period of 14 days from the date of publication of the Public Notice.  Written comments must be received by the Permitting Authority by close of business (5:00 p.m.) on or before the end of the 14-day period.  If written comments received result in a significant change to the Draft Permit, the Permitting Authority shall revise the Draft Permit and require, if applicable, another Public Notice.  All comments filed will be made available for public inspection.


Petitions:  A person whose substantial interests are affected by the proposed permitting decision may petition for an administrative hearing in accordance with Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S.  The petition must contain the information set forth below and must be filed with (received by) the Department’s Agency Clerk in the Office of General Counsel of the Department of Environmental Protection, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Mail Station #35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000.  Petitions filed by the applicant or any of the parties listed below must be filed within 14 days of receipt of this Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit.  Petitions filed by any persons other than those entitled to written notice under Section 120.60(3), F.S., must be filed within 14 days of publication of the attached Public Notice or within 14 days of receipt of this Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit, whichever occurs first.  Under Section 120.60(3), F.S., however, any person who asked the Permitting Authority for notice of agency action may file a petition within 14 days of receipt of that notice, regardless of the date of publication.  A petitioner shall mail a copy of the petition to the applicant at the address indicated above, at the time of filing.  The failure of any person to file a petition within the appropriate time period shall constitute a waiver of that person’s right to request an administrative determination (hearing) under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S., or to intervene in this proceeding and participate as a party to it.  Any subsequent intervention (in a proceeding initiated by another party) will be only at the approval of the presiding officer upon the filing of a motion in compliance with Rule 28-106.205, F.A.C.


A petition that disputes the material facts on which the Permitting Authority’s action is based must contain the following information: (a) The name and address of each agency affected and each agency’s file or identification number, if known; (b) The name, address, and telephone number of the petitioner; the name, address and telephone number of the petitioner’s representative, if any, which shall be the address for service purposes during the course of the proceeding; and an explanation of how the petitioner’s substantial interests will be affected by the agency determination; (c) A statement of when and how each petitioner received notice of the agency action or proposed decision; (d) A statement of all disputed issues of material fact.  If there are none, the petition must so state; (e) A concise statement of the ultimate facts alleged, including the specific facts the petitioner contends warrant reversal or modification of the agency’s proposed action; (f) A statement of the specific rules or statutes the petitioner contends require reversal or modification of the agency’s proposed action including an explanation of how the alleged facts relate to the specific rules or statutes; and, (g) A statement of the relief sought by the petitioner, stating precisely the action the petitioner wishes the agency to take with respect to the agency’s proposed action.  A petition that does not dispute the material facts upon which the Permitting Authority’s action is based shall state that no such facts are in dispute and otherwise shall contain the same information as set forth above, as required by Rule 28-106.301, F.A.C.


Because the administrative hearing process is designed to formulate final agency action, the filing of a petition means that the Permitting Authority’s final action may be different from the position taken by it in this Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit.  Persons whose substantial interests will be affected by any such final decision of the Permitting Authority on the application have the right to petition to become a party to the proceeding, in accordance with the requirements set forth above.


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


The undersigned duly designated deputy agency clerk hereby certifies that this Final Air Permit package (including the Final Determination and Final Permit) was sent by electronic mail, or a link to these documents made available electronically on a publicly accessible server, with received receipt requested before the close of business on the date indicated below to the following persons.


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


FILING AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT FILED, on this date, pursuant to Section 120.52(7), Florida Statutes, with the designated agency clerk, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged.
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Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit REVISION


Florida Department of Environmental Protection



Division of Air Resource Management, Office of Permitting and Compliance


Draft Air Construction Permit Revision


Project No. 1070005-078-AC


Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC, Palatka Mill


Putnam County, Florida


Applicant:  The applicant for this project is Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC.  The applicant’s authorized representative and mailing address is:  Gary L. Frost, Vice President Operations, Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC, Palatka Mill, P.O. Box 919, Palatka, Florida 32178-0919.


Facility Location:  Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC operates the existing Palatka Mill, which is located in Putnam County at 215 County Road 216 in Palatka, Florida.


Project:  This permit will revise Permit Nos. 1070005-066-AC and 1070005-070-AC for the No. 4 combination boiler.  Permit No. 1070005-066-AC authorized the applicant to perform the following modifications to the No. 4 combination boiler:  replace the fuel oil burners with natural gas burners; upgrade of the existing mechanical dust collection system; and replace 28 continuous tube sections in the No. 4 combination boiler superheater section.  Permit No. 1070005-070-AC authorized the replacement of approximately 1,400 air preheater tubes out of a total of 2,320 tubes in the No. 4 Combination Boiler.  Approximately 400 tubes required prompt replacement due to corrosion or ash buildup, while approximately 1,000 tubes were replaced to minimize future failures and plugging.  



This project (Permit No. 1070005-078-AC) involves replacing the existing ESP used to control particulate matter (PM) emissions from the No. 4 combination boiler with an ESP previously used to control PM emission from the No. 5 power boiler.  The ESP for the No. 5 power boiler is no longer used since the boiler was converted to natural gas firing.  The replacement is necessary, because the original ESP was damaged by fire in November 2012.  According to the applicant, the power boiler ESP is nearly identical in size, design and configuration to the original ESP and should provide equivalent PM control efficiency resulting in no increase in PM emissions from the boiler.  The Department concurs with this conclusion but will require PM emissions stack testing and recordkeeping to verify that PM emissions will not increase as a result of this project.


Permitting Authority:  Applications for air construction permits are subject to review in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 403, Florida Statutes (F.S.) and Chapters 62-4, 62-210 and 62-212 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.).  The proposed project is not exempt from air permitting requirements and an air permit modification of Permit No. 1070005-066-AC is required to perform the proposed work.  The Permitting Authority responsible for making a permit determination for this project is the Office of Permitting and Compliance in the Department of Environmental Protection’s Division of Air Resource Management.  The Permitting Authority’s mailing address is:  2600 Blair Stone Road, MS #5505, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400.  The Permitting Authority’s telephone number is 850/717-9000.



Project File:  A complete project file is available for public inspection during the normal business hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday (except legal holidays), at the physical address indicated above for the Permitting Authority.  The complete project file includes the Draft Permit, the Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination, the application and information submitted by the applicant (exclusive of confidential records under Section 403.111, F.S.).  Interested persons may contact the Permitting Authority’s project engineer for additional information at the address and phone number listed above.  In addition, electronic copies of these documents are available on the following web site by entering draft permit number:  http://www.dep.state.fl.us/air/emission/apds/default.asp.


Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit:  The Permitting Authority gives notice of its intent to issue an air construction permit to the applicant for the project described above.  The applicant has provided reasonable assurance that operation of proposed equipment will not adversely impact air quality and that the project will comply with all appropriate provisions of Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-296 and 62-297, F.A.C.  The Permitting Authority will issue a Final Permit in accordance with the conditions of the proposed Draft Permit unless a timely petition for an administrative hearing is filed under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. or unless public comment received in accordance with this notice results in a different decision or a significant change of terms or conditions.


Comments:  The Permitting Authority will accept written comments concerning the proposed Draft Permit for a period of 14 days from the date of publication of this Public Notice.  Written comments must be received by the Permitting Authority by close of business (5:00 p.m.) on or before the end of the 14-day period.  If written comments received result in a significant change to the Draft Permit, the Permitting Authority shall revise the Draft Permit and require, if applicable, another Public Notice.  All comments filed will be made available for public inspection.


Petitions:  A person whose substantial interests are affected by the proposed permitting decision may petition for an administrative hearing in accordance with Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S.  The petition must contain the information set forth below and must be filed with (received by) the Department’s Agency Clerk in the Office of General Counsel of the Department of Environmental Protection at 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Mail Station #35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000.  Petitions filed by any persons other than those entitled to written notice under Section 120.60(3), F.S. must be filed within 14 days of publication of this Public Notice or receipt of a written notice, whichever occurs first.  Under Section 120.60(3), F.S., however, any person who asked the Permitting Authority for notice of agency action may file a petition within 14 days of receipt of that notice, regardless of the date of publication.  A petitioner shall mail a copy of the petition to the applicant at the address indicated above, at the time of filing.  The failure of any person to file a petition within the appropriate time period shall constitute a waiver of that person’s right to request an administrative determination (hearing) under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S., or to intervene in this proceeding and participate as a party to it.  Any subsequent intervention (in a proceeding initiated by another party) will be only at the approval of the presiding officer upon the filing of a motion in compliance with Rule 28-106.205, F.A.C.



A petition that disputes the material facts on which the Permitting Authority’s action is based must contain the following information: (a) The name and address of each agency affected and each agency’s file or identification number, if known; (b) The name, address and telephone number of the petitioner; the name address and telephone number of the petitioner’s representative, if any, which shall be the address for service purposes during the course of the proceeding; and an explanation of how the petitioner’s substantial rights will be affected by the agency determination; (c) A statement of when and how the petitioner received notice of the agency action or proposed decision; (d) A statement of all disputed issues of material fact.  If there are none, the petition must so state; (e) A concise statement of the ultimate facts alleged, including the specific facts the petitioner contends warrant reversal or modification of the agency’s proposed action; (f) A statement of the specific rules or statutes the petitioner contends require reversal or modification of the agency’s proposed action including an explanation of how the alleged facts relate to the specific rules or statutes; and, (g) A statement of the relief sought by the petitioner, stating precisely the action the petitioner wishes the agency to take with respect to the agency’s proposed action.  A petition that does not dispute the material facts upon which the Permitting Authority’s action is based shall state that no such facts are in dispute and otherwise shall contain the same information as set forth above, as required by Rule 28-106.301, F.A.C.



Because the administrative hearing process is designed to formulate final agency action, the filing of a petition means that the Permitting Authority’s final action may be different from the position taken by it in this Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit.  Persons whose substantial interests will be affected by any such final decision of the Permitting Authority on the application have the right to petition to become a party to the proceeding, in accordance with the requirements set forth above.



Mediation:  Mediation is not available for this proceeding.



(Public Notice to be Published in the Newspaper)
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TECHNICAL EVALUATION


&


PRELIMINARY DETERMINATION


APPLICANT


Georgia Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC


Post Office Box 919


Palatka, FL 32178-0919


Palatka Mill


Facility ID No. 1070005


PROJECT


Project No. 1070005-078-AC


Application for Minor Source Air Construction Permit


No. 4 Combination Boiler, Electrostatic Precipitator Replacement 


COUNTY


Putnam County, Florida


PERMITTING AUTHORITY


Florida Department of Environmental Protection


Division of Air Resource Management


Office of Permitting and Compliance


2600 Blair Stone Road, MS#5505


Tallahassee, Florida  32399-2400


January 3, 2013





1. GENERAL PROJECT INFORMATION


1.1. Air Pollution Regulations


Projects at stationary sources with the potential to emit air pollution are subject to the applicable environmental laws specified in Section 403 of the Florida Statutes (F.S.).  The statutes authorize the Department of Environmental Protection (Department) to establish regulations regarding air quality as part of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), which includes the following applicable chapters:  62-4 (Permits); 62-204 (Air Pollution Control – General Provisions); 62-210 (Stationary Sources – General Requirements); 62-212 (Stationary Sources – Preconstruction Review); 62-213 (Operation Permits for Major Sources of Air Pollution); 62-296 (Stationary Sources - Emission Standards); and 62-297 (Stationary Sources – Emissions Monitoring).  Specifically, air construction permits are required pursuant to Rules 62-4, 62-210 and 62-212, F.A.C.


In addition, the U. S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) establishes air quality regulations in Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR).  Part 60 specifies New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) for numerous industrial categories.  Part 61 specifies National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP) based on specific pollutants.  Part 63 specifies NESHAP based on the Maximum Achievable Control Technology (MACT) for numerous industrial categories.  The Department adopts these federal regulations on a quarterly basis in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C.


1.2. Facility Description and Location


The Palatka Mill is an existing Kraft pulp and paper mill, which is categorized under Standard Industrial Classification Code No. 2611.  The existing Palatka Mill is located in Putnam County at 215 County Road 216 in Palatka, Florida.  The UTM coordinates of the existing facility are Zone 17, 434.00 kilometers (km) East and 3,283.4 km North.  This site is in an area that is in attainment (or designated as unclassifiable) for all air pollutants subject to state and federal Ambient Air Quality Standards (AAQS).


1.3. Facility Regulatory Categories


· The facility is a major source of hazardous air pollutants (HAP).


· The facility does not operate units subject to the acid rain provisions of the Clean Air Act.


· The facility is a Title V major source of air pollution in accordance with Chapter 213, F.A.C.


· The facility is a major stationary source in accordance with Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C. for the Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) of Air Quality.


1.4. Project Description


This project involves the revision of existing Air Construction Permit Nos. 1070005-066-AC and 1070005-070-AC for the No. 4 combination boiler at the Palatka Mill.  The No. 4 combination boiler is emission unit 016 (EU 016) at the facility.  Permit No. 1070005-066-AC authorized the applicant to perform the following modifications to the No. 4 combination boiler:  replace the fuel oil burners with natural gas burners; upgrade of the existing mechanical dust collection system; and replace 28 continuous tube sections in the No. 4 combination boiler superheater section.  Permit No. 1070005-070-AC authorized the replacement of approximately 1,400 air preheater tubes out of a total of 2,320 tubes in the No. 4 Combination Boiler.  Approximately 400 tubes required prompt replacement due to corrosion or ash buildup, while approximately 1,000 tubes were replaced to minimize future failures and plugging.  


This project (Permit No. 1070005-078-AC) involves replacing the current ESP used to control particulate matter (PM) emissions from the No. 4 combination boiler with an ESP previously used to control PM emission from the No. 5 power boiler.  The ESP for the No. 5 power boiler is no longer used since the boiler was converted to natural gas firing.  The replacement is necessary, because the original ESP was damaged by fire in November 2012.  According to the applicant, the power boiler ESP is nearly identical in size, design and configuration to the original ESP and should provide equivalent PM control efficiency.  In addition, this project incorporates a permit exemption letter dated December 12, 2012, wherein the Department granted the permittee the authority to plug off 14 dust collector tubes in the No 4 Combination Boiler dust collection system.  After plugging these tubes, 34 active tubes will remain in the dust collection system.  The result of plugging the tubes will be an increase in flue gas velocity through the dust collection system (cyclones), which should increase the efficiency of the mechanical dust collection system.  This work is also included in this permitting action for completeness even through no permit is required to conduct the work


1.5. Processing Schedule


· December 19, 2012:	Received complete application for a minor source air pollution construction permit.


· January 3, 2013:	Issued draft permit package.


2. PSD APPLICABILITY


2.1. General PSD Applicability


The Department regulates major stationary sources in accordance with Florida’s PSD program pursuant to Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C.  PSD preconstruction review is required in areas that are currently in attainment with the state and federal ambient air quality standards (AAQS) or areas designated as “unclassifiable” for these regulated pollutants.  Commonly addressed PSD pollutants for Kraft pulp mills such as the Palatka Mill include: carbon monoxide (CO), nitrogen oxide (NOX), PM, PM with a mean diameter of 10 microns or less (PM10), PM with a mean diameter of 2.5 microns or less (PM2.5), sulfur dioxide (SO2), volatile organic compounds (VOC) and sulfuric acid mist (SAM).  


Additional PSD pollutants that are more common to certain other industries include: lead (Pb), mercury (Hg), hydrogen sulfide (H2S), TRS including H2S, reduced sulfur compounds (RSC) including H2S, municipal waste combustor (MWC) organics measured as total tetra- through octa-chlorinated dibenzo-p-dioxins and dibenzofurans (dioxin/furan), MWC metals measured as PM; MWC acid gases measured as SO2 and HCl, and municipal solid waste (MSW) landfill emissions as non-methane organic compounds (NMOC).  


As defined in Rule 62-210.200(Definitions), F.A.C., a stationary source is a “major stationary source” (major PSD source) if it emits or has the potential to emit (PTE):


· 250 tons per year (tons/year) or more of any PSD pollutant; or 


· 100 tons/year or more of any PSD pollutant and the facility belongs to one of the 28 listed PSD major facility categories.


The list given in the citation includes the category of “Kraft pulp mills”.  The given category applies to the facility before and after the proposed project.  The Palatka Mill is a major stationary source based on actual emissions of and potential to emit 100 tons/year or more of several individual PSD pollutants.  


For major stationary sources such as the Palatka Mill, PSD applicability for modification projects is based on thresholds known as the significant emission rates (SER) as defined in Rule 62-210.200(Definitions), F.A.C.  Any “net emissions increase” as defined in Rule 62-210.200(Definitions), F.A.C. of a PSD pollutant from the project that equals or exceeds the respective SER is considered “significant”.  SER also means any emissions rate or any net emissions increase of a PSD pollutant associated with a major stationary source or major modification which would construct within 10 km of a Class I area and have an impact on such area equal to or greater than 1 gram per cubic meter, 24-hour average.  


Although a facility may be “major” (i.e. emits or has the potential to emit 100 or 250 TPY as applicable) for only one PSD pollutant, a project must include BACT controls for any PSD pollutant that exceeds the corresponding significant emission rates given in the Table 1 below.


[bookmark: _Ref344887586]Table 1 - List of SER by PSD-Pollutant. 1, 3


			Pollutant


			SER (TPY)


			Pollutant


			SER (TPY)





			CO


			100


			NOX


			40





			PM/PM10/PM2.5


			25/15/10


			Ozone (VOC) 2


			40





			PM2.5 (NOX)


			40


			PM2.5 (SO2)


			40





			Ozone (NOX) 2


			40


			SAM


			7





			SO2


			40


			Pb


			0.6





			Hg


			0.1 


			GHG (CO2e)


			75,000 3





			1. Excluding fluoride and those pollutants defined for Pulp and Paper, MWC, MSW landfills.


1. Ozone (O3) is regulated by its precursors (VOC and NOX).  PSD for PM2.5 can be triggered by its precursors (NOX and SO2).


1. Federal SER of 75,000 TPY for GHG (as CO2e) for PSD sources and has not been incorporated into Department rules. 








According to 40 CFR 52.21, six greenhouse gases (GHG), are also be subject to regulation at new stationary sources that will emit or have the potential to emit 100,000 tons/year (SER equal to 75,000 tons/year) expressed as the carbon dioxide equivalent emissions (CO2e).  This requirement has not been incorporated into Department rules but is a separate requirement of the EPA.  


2.2. PSD Applicability for Project


The project is located in Putnam County which is in an area that is currently in attainment with the AAQS or is otherwise designated as unclassifiable.  According to the applicant, the proposed project will not increase emissions for any PSD pollutant; therefore, the project is not subject to a PSD preconstruction review.


3. DEPARTMENT REVIEW


The No. 4 combination boiler that operates at the Palatka Mill is permitted to burn wood/bark and natural gas. ` Modifications to this boiler were authorized to be performed by the final Air Construction Permit Nos. 1070005-066-AC and 1070005-070-AC that were issued on April, 7, 2011 and January 11, 2012, respectively.  These permitted modifications include the following changes or improvements: 


· Replace the fuel oil burners with natural gas burners;


· Upgrade of the existing mechanical dust collection system; 


· Replace the existing steam induced draft fan-drive with an electric motor; 


· Partially replace 28 continuous superheater tube sections; and


· Replace approximately 1,400 tubes in the boiler air preheater section.


The applicant is proposing to replace the existing damaged ESP on the No. 4 combination boiler with an ESP previously used to control PM emission from the No. 5 power boiler.  The applicant submitted specification sheets comparing the No. 5 power boiler ESP to the No. 4 combination boiler ESP to show that they have very similar characteristics and should provide the same level of PM emissions control.  In addition, the applicant sent an email to the Department dated December 10, 2012 comparing the characteristics of the two ESP.  The information from this email is summarized below.  


1. The two precipitator chambers are identical (size, structure, etc.)


1. The main difference between the two precipitators originally was that the Power Boiler inlet field was empty; an inlet field was added to the PB unit in 2007 under permit 1070005-036-AC issued October 11, 2006.


1. Both Precipitators have (3) Fields, all of them have (21) collecting plates, (20) gas passages with 12” spacing


2. The collecting plates are 41’ high and 11’2” wide.


1. Each field has (120) electrodes, (6) in each gas passage.


1. Each Precipitator has (49) Rappers


4. (12) collecting plate rappers per field


4. (3) discharge electrode rappers per field


4. (2) inlet and (2) outlet distribution plate rappers


1. The fields are individually energized by five (6) transformer/rectifier (T/R) sets (three per Precipitator).  Each T/R is connected full wave through a single output bushing.  The power supply is 480 volts, 60 Hz, 3 Phase. 


5. T/R Set Ratings


			Primary Volts AC


			Primary Amps AC


			Secondary
Volts DC


			Secondary
Amps DC


			KVA





			480 V


			84 Amps


			55 kV


			500 mA


			38.6 kVA








1. Both utilize BHA SQ300 Controls for the Rappers and T/R Sets.


1. There are a few subtle differences that overall should not impact dust removal performance.  These differences are in the style of electrodes and plates in various fields.


Based on the Departments review of these specifications and correspondence, it has reasonable assurance that PM emissions will not increase as a result of this project.  The Department will require that a PM emissions rate stack test be conducted within 90 days of replacement ESP becoming operational on the No. 4 combination boiler to verify that the permitted PM emission rates contained in the current Title V Air Operation permit No. 1070005-074-AV are not exceeded.  The test methods and conditions specified in the Title V permit shall be utilized for this stack testing.  Results shall be reported to the Compliance Authority with 30 days of the completion of the stack testing.  In addition, the Department will require that the applicant submit annual reports for five years to verify PM emission rates.  


4. PRELIMINARY DETERMINATION


The Department makes a preliminary determination that the proposed project will comply with all applicable state and federal air pollution regulations as conditioned by the draft permit.  David Read is the project engineer responsible for reviewing the application and drafting the permit.  Additional details of this analysis may be obtained by contacting Mr. Read at 850-717-9075, by email at david.read@dep.state.fl.us or by mail at the Department’s Office of Permitting and Compliance at Mail Station #5505, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida  32399-2400.
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SECTION 2.  PERMIT REVISIONS





PERMITTEE


			Georgia-Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC


Post Office Box 919


Palatka, FL 32178-0919


Authorized Representative:


Gary L. Frost, Vice President Operations


			Air Permit No. 1070005-078-AC


Permit Expires:  January 1, 2015


Minor Air Construction Permit Revision


Palatka Mill


No. 4 Combination Boiler Electrostatic


Precipitator (ESP) Replacement








Project


This is the final air construction permit, which revises Permit Nos. 1070005-066-AC and 1070005-070-AC to allow the replacement of the ESP for No. 4 Combination Boiler.  The proposed work will be conducted at the existing Palatka Mill, which is a Kraft pulp and paper mill categorized under Standard Industrial Classification No. 2611.  The existing facility is located in Putnam County at 215 County Road 216 in Palatka, Florida.  The UTM coordinates are Zone 17, 434.00 kilometer (km) East and 3,283.4 km North.  


This final permit is organized into the following sections:  Section 1 (General Information) and Section 2 (Permit Revisions).  As noted in the Final Determination provided with this final permit, only minor changes and clarifications were made to the draft permit.


STATEMENT OF BASIS


This air pollution construction permit is issued under the provisions of:  Chapter 403 of the Florida Statutes (F.S.) and Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-296 and 62-297 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.).  The permittee is authorized to conduct the proposed work in accordance with the conditions of this permit.  This project is subject to the general preconstruction review requirements in Rule 62-212.300, F.A.C. and is not subject to the preconstruction review requirements for major stationary sources in Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C. for the Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) of Air Quality.


Upon issuance of this final permit, any party to this order has the right to seek judicial review of it under Section 120.68 of the Florida Statutes by filing a notice of appeal under Rule 9.110 of the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure with the clerk of the Department of Environmental Protection in the Office of General Counsel (Mail Station #35, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida, 32399-3000) and by filing a copy of the notice of appeal accompanied by the applicable filing fees with the appropriate District Court of Appeal.  The notice must be filed within 30 days after this order is filed with the clerk of the Department.


Executed in Tallahassee, Florida


Electronic Signature





(DRAFT)
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


Mr. Khalid AlNahdy, DEP Northeast District Office:  (khalid.alnahdy@dep.state.fl.us)


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
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FACILITY DESCRIPTION


The existing facility consists of the following emissions units (EU).  The EU affected by this permitting action is highlighted.


			Facility ID No. 1070005





			EU ID No.


			Emission Unit Description





			015


			No. 5 Power Boiler





			016 


			No. 4 Combination Boiler





			017 


			No. 4 Lime Kiln





			018


			No. 4 Recovery Boiler





			019


			No. 4 Smelt Dissolving Tanks (2)





			031


			Tall Oil Plant





			035


			ClO2 Plant and Methanol Storage Tank





			036


			ECF No. 3 Bleach Plant





			037 


			Thermal Oxidizer





			039


			Bark Hog





			044


			No. 7 Package Boiler





			045


			Wide-web Flexographic Printers





			046 


			Condensate Stripper System





			047


			Brown Stock Washing System- Lines 3,5,6,&7





			048


			Oxygen Delignification System





			050


			Converting Department








FACILITY REGULATORY CLASSIFICATION


· The facility is a major source of hazardous air pollutants (HAP).


· The facility does not operate units subject to the acid rain provisions of the Clean Air Act (CAA).


· The facility is a Title V major source of air pollution in accordance with Chapter 213, F.A.C.


· The facility is a major stationary source in accordance with Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C. for the Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) of Air Quality.


· The proposed project does not trigger a PSD review and a requirement to conduct a Best Available Control Technology (BACT) pursuant to Department Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C.


PROPOSED PROJECT


This permit will revise Permit Nos. 1070005-066-AC and 1070005-070-AC for the No. 4 combination boiler.  Permit No. 1070005-066-AC authorized the applicant to perform the following modifications to the No. 4 combination boiler:  replace the fuel oil burners with natural gas burners; upgrade of the existing mechanical dust collection system; and replace 28 continuous tube sections in the No. 4 combination boiler superheater section.  Permit No. 1070005-070-AC authorized the replacement of approximately 1,400 air preheater tubes out of a total of 2,320 tubes in the No. 4 Combination Boiler.  Approximately 400 tubes required prompt replacement due to corrosion or ash buildup, while approximately 1,000 tubes were replaced to minimize future failures and plugging.  


This project (Permit No. 1070005-078-AC) involves replacing the existing ESP used to control particulate matter (PM) emissions from the No. 4 combination boiler with an ESP previously used to control PM emission from the No. 5 power boiler.  The ESP for the No. 5 power boiler is no longer used since the boiler was converted to natural gas firing.  The replacement is necessary, because the original ESP was damaged by fire in November 2012.  According to the applicant, the power boiler ESP is nearly identical in size, design and configuration to the original ESP and should provide equivalent PM control efficiency.


Finally, in a permit exemption letter dated December 12, 2012, the Department granted the permittee the authority to plug off 14 dust collector tubes in the No 4 Combination Boiler dust collection system.  After plugging these tubes, 34 active tubes will remain in the dust collection system.  The result of plugging the tubes will be an increase in flue gas velocity through the dust collection system (cyclones), which should increase the efficiency of the mechanical dust collection system.  This work is also included in this permitting action for completeness even through no permit is required to conduct the work.


(1) 
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SECTION 1.  GENERAL INFORMATION





The following permit conditions are revised as indicated.  Strikethrough is used to denote the deletion of text.  Double-underlines are used to denote the addition of text.  All changes are emphasized with yellow highlight.


Permit Being Modified:  Permit No. 1070005-066-AC


Affected Emissions Unit:  EU 016


Subsection 3A, Emission Standards:  This section is revised as follows.


EMISSIONS STANDARDS


5. Standards


a. Existing Standards:  The No. 4 Combination Boiler remains subject to all applicable requirements in the current Title V air operation permit.  No new emissions standards are imposed by this permit.  [Rules 62-4.070(3) and 62-210.300 and Chapter 62-213, F.A.C.]


b. New Standards:  Compliance stack testing to show that the PM emission limits specified in the current Title V air operation permit are met shall be completed within 90 days of the initial operation of the replacement ESP on the No. 4 combination boiler.  The test methods and conditions specified in the Title V permit shall be utilized.  Results shall be reported to the Compliance Authority with 30 days of the completion of the stack testing.  [Rules 62-4.070(3), F.A.C.]


Permit Being Modified:  Permit No. 1070005-070-AC


Affected Emissions Unit:  EU 016


Section II – Permit Revisions:  This condition is revised as follows.


2. Modifications :  The permittee shall make the following modifications and other related work to the No. 4 Combination Boiler:


a. Replace the three existing No. 6 residual oil burners with natural gas burners.  Natural gas shall replace No. 6 residual fuel oil as the supplemental fuel supply for No. 4 Combination Boiler.  Fuel oil will no longer be permitted after the burner replacement is complete.  


b. Upgrade the existing mechanical dust collection system.  The No. 3 tertiary collector shall be upgraded to become the primary dust collector prior to the electrostatic precipitator.  Plug off 14 dust collector tubes in the dust collection system leaving 34 active tubes in the dust collection system.  Plugging the tubes will increase in flue gas velocity through the dust collection system (cyclones) thereby increasing the collection efficiency.


c. Replace the existing steam turbine-driven on the induced draft (ID) fan for the No. 4 combination boiler with an electric motor ID fan.


d. Partially replace 28 continuous tube sections in the boiler’s superheater section.


e. Replace approximately 1,400 tubes in the boiler air preheater section.


f. Replace the existing ESP used to control PM emissions from the No. 4 combination boiler with the ESP previously used to control PM emission from the No. 5 power boiler.  To accomplish this task, the duct work shall be modified to redirect the flue gas from the No. 4 combination boiler from inlet of the damaged ESP to the inlet of the ESP that had previously been used to control PM emissions from the No. 5 power boiler.


{Permitting Note:  the ESP previously used to control PM emissions from the No. 5 power boiler is no longer in use because the No. 5 boiler was converted to fire only natural gas in a previous permitting action.}


[Applicant’s Request]
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ARMS PA Project ID: 1070005-078-AC
Facility Name: Palatka Pulp and Paper Mill
Florida County: Putnam


Project Description: Application for No. 4 Combination Boiler
Precipitator Replacement


Permit Application Processor: David Read
Processor Phone: (850) 717-9075
Processor Email Address: David Read@dep.state.fl.us
Received in-house: 12/19/12


From: Scearce, Lynn
To: AlNahdy, Khalid; ceron.heather@epa.gov; forney.kathleen@epa.gov; yan.huang@dnr.state.ga.us;


mpitrolo@fs.fed.us; catherine_collins@fws.gov; meredith_bond@fws.gov
Cc: Read, David; Friday, Barbara; Scearce, Lynn
Subject: New Application: 1070005-078-AC, Georgia Pacific, LLC, Palatka Pulp and Paper Mill
Date: Monday, December 31, 2012 1:13:38 PM
Attachments: image002.png


All:


A new Permit Application has been received at FL Department of Environmental Protection
Div. of Air Resource Management and is currently under review and can be viewed at
http://appprod.dep.state.fl.us/air/emission/apds/default.asp.
 


If you have any problems accessing these documents please let me know.  The following
identifies your project number and permit application processor.


 


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



http://survey.dep.state.fl.us/?refemail=Lynn.Scearce@dep.state.fl.us






From: EPOST_AIR_TAL@dep.state.fl.us
To: EPOST_AIR_TAL
Cc: PCOBB@GOLDER.COM; Read, David; EPOST_AIR_TAL
Subject: Project Name/Description/Facility County: AB143-NO. 4 BOILER / Application for No. 4 Combination Boiler


Precipitator Replacement / PUTNAM
Date: Wednesday, December 19, 2012 10:40:46 AM


Dear Applicant:


Thank you for your air pollution permit application for the referenced project.  We encourage direct
communication with our permit processor to answer any questions that may come up during the review
process.  You may be contacted by our processor by e-mail or by phone.  Our goal is to reduce the
number of formal requests for additional information (RAIs), as well as the overall time to process your
application.  We appreciate your efforts to assist us by ensuring that your response to any questions or
RAIs is timely, thorough and complete.


  Facility Name: PALATKA PULP & PAPER MILL
  Project Description: Application for No. 4 Combination Boiler Precipitator Replacement
  Application Project No: 1070005-078-AC
  Application Received Date: 12/14/2012
  Permit Processor: David Read
  Processor Phone: 850-414-7268
  Processor Email: david.read@dep.state.fl.us


The Department will help you navigate the permitting process and explain the permit application
requirements for your facility.  You may schedule a meeting or teleconference with the permitting
processor as needed or simply send an email.


If you have any questions, or if you received this email in error, please contact the Permitting Processor.


Best Regards,


Florida Department of Environmental Protection                     
Division of Air Resource Management                     
2600 Blair Stone Road, MS. 5500                     
Tallahassee, FL 32399                     
Tel. 850-717-9000


                                  Please do not reply to this auto-generated email.                                


Please take a few minutes to share your comments on the service you received from the department by
clicking on this link Copy the url below to a web browser to complete the DEP survey:
http://survey.dep.state.fl.us/?refemail=EPOST_AIR_TAL@dep.state.fl.us
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From: EPOST_AIR_TAL@dep.state.fl.us
To: EPOST_AIR_TAL
Cc: PCOBB@GOLDER.COM; Read, David; EPOST_AIR_TAL
Subject: Project Name/Description/Facility County: AP235-EXEMPTION ON DUST SYSTEM / Exemption request on the


dust collector system for the No. 4 combination boiler. / PUTNAM
Date: Monday, December 10, 2012 10:46:02 AM


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
  Project Description: Exemption request on the dust collector system for the No. 4 combination boiler.
  Application Project No: 1070005-077-AC
  Application Received Date: 12/10/2012
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
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From: Reynolds, Ron E.
To: Scearce, Lynn; Frost, Gary (Florida)
Cc: ceron.heather@epa.gov; forney.kathleen@epa.gov; AlNahdy, Khalid; Read, David; Arif, Syed; Friday, Barbara;


McQuaig, Mary M.
Subject: RE: 1070005-078-AC, Georgia Pacific Consumer Operations, LLC, Palatka Mill, Draft Permit
Date: Thursday, January 03, 2013 9:53:19 AM


Dear Ms. Scearce,


Draft Permit documents have been received.


Many Thanks and Happy New Year!


Ron Reynolds
Office 386-329-0967
Cell 386-916-3133


 


From: Scearce, Lynn [mailto:Lynn.Scearce@dep.state.fl.us] 
Sent: Thursday, January 03, 2013 8:58 AM
To: Frost, Gary (Florida)
Cc: Reynolds, Ron E.; ceron.heather@epa.gov; forney.kathleen@epa.gov; AlNahdy, Khalid; Read, David;
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



mailto:Ron.Reynolds@GAPAC.com
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Lynn Scearce
Office of Permitting and Compliance (OPC)
Division of Air Resource Management – DEP
2600 Blair Stone Road, Mail Stop 5505
Phone:  850-717-9025


Did you know that the Department may not require you to submit a Title V fee for the 2012 calendar year?  To learn more,
please visit us online at the following web address:  www.title5feeholiday.com


 


 


 


Please take a few minutes to share your comments on the service you received from the department
by clicking on this link. DEP Customer Survey.



http://www.title5feeholiday.com/

http://www.dep.state.fl.us/air/emission/tv_fee_holiday.htm

http://survey.dep.state.fl.us/?refemail=Lynn.Scearce@dep.state.fl.us






From: Scearce, Lynn
To: Read, David
Subject: RE: Georgia-Pacific LLC - Palatka: Facility ID 1070005 - No. 4 Combination Boiler Dust Collector
Date: Monday, December 10, 2012 10:48:42 AM


12/5/2012 1070005
Exemption- No module
needed


David AP235 077-AC
Georgia Pacific,
LLC, Palatka
Facility


Exemption request on the
dust collector system for the
No. 4 combination boiler.


 
 


From: Read, David 
Sent: Monday, December 10, 2012 10:01 AM
To: Scearce, Lynn
Subject: FW: Georgia-Pacific LLC - Palatka: Facility ID 1070005 - No. 4 Combination Boiler Dust Collector
 
Lynn this needs a project number assigned to it.  Syed will know when we actually received the request.
 
Thanks
 
David Read
 


From: Arif, Syed 
Sent: Monday, December 10, 2012 8:32 AM
To: Read, David
Subject: FW: Georgia-Pacific LLC - Palatka: Facility ID 1070005 - No. 4 Combination Boiler Dust Collector
 
David,
 
Here’s the exemption request on the dust collector system for the No. 4 combination boiler.
 
Thanks for taking care of this request.
 
Syed
 


From: Reynolds, Ron E. [mailto:Ron.Reynolds@GAPAC.com] 
Sent: Friday, December 07, 2012 12:43 PM
To: Arif, Syed
Cc: Linero, Alvaro; Ruppel, Mark S.; Galler, Wayne J.; McQuaig, Mary M.; Morris, Daniel L.; Francis, Keith T. (PAL); Pell, Leigh
Subject: Georgia-Pacific LLC - Palatka: Facility ID 1070005 - No. 4 Combination Boiler Dust Collector
 
Mr. Arif,
 
Please find letter attached.  Hard copy will follow via certified mail.
 
Best regards,
 
Ron Reynolds
Office 386-329-0967
Cell 386-916-3133
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